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ADDENDUM 1 

DATE: July 28, 2025 

REFERENCE: City of Rockville 
Request for Proposal: RFP 08-25 

Redgate Park Improvements: Concept, Design, And 
Construction Administration Services 

Scheduled Submittal Deadline: Wednesday, August 20, 2025 at 2:00 P.M. (Eastern) 

Please note the following additions, revisions, clarifications, corrections and/or deletions have been made to the above 
referenced Request for Proposal (RFP): 

Addition 1: 

A preliminary copy of the Natural Resource Inventory/Forest Stand Delineation (NRI/FSD) has been furnished as Attachment A to this 
Addendum for the sole purpose of providing additional information. 

Addition 2: 

A General Site Map has been furnished as Attachment B to this Addendum for the sole purpose of providing additional information. 

Addition 3: 

A Checklist for Forest Conservation Plan has been furnished as Attachment C to this Addendum for the sole purpose of providing 
additional information. 

Addition 4: 

The following Condition has been added as Article 53 to Attachment D of the RFP: 

“An individual or business entity that employs an individual who assists a City department in the drafting of requirements, specifications, 
and/or drawings for an invitation for bids or a request for proposal for a competitive procurement process may not submit a bid or proposal 
for that procurement process or assist or represent another person, directly or indirectly, who is submitting a bid or proposal for that 
procurement process.” 

Addition 5: 

The following Task C - Design Development Requirement And Deliverable has been added to the RFP as Section II.E.a.viii.: 

“Conceptual Layouts: Based on existing site topography and the City’s desire to implement Universal Site Design concepts, the design 
team should prepare up to three conceptual sketches showing potential layouts for the proposed active area features for the City to 
consider.” 

Clarification 1: 

Section II.D Task B – Existing Trail and Parking Lot Maintenance, Rehabilitation, and Enhancement applies to the whole park (active and 
passive areas). Final deliverables for Task B should include an evaluation of the existing asphalt trail and pathway system and long-term 
recommendations for enhancing the trail and pathway system at RedGate that can be implemented over time, where design and 
construction in the passive areas is not anticipated, or a requirement of the RFP. 
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Clarification 2: 

Section II.E Task C – Design Development Requirements and Deliverables only applies to the active area of the park where the new 
features are proposed as outlined in Attachment B, where the limits of construction (i.e., Limits of Disturbance) for this project is anticipated 
to be within the active areas only, and construction is not intended in the passive areas of the park as part of the RFP’s Scope of Work, 
nor is it intended as a requirement of the RFP. 

Deletion 1: 

Section II.C Task A – Arboretum Design Development Requirements of the RFP has been deleted in its entirety, where Proposals should 
include hourly rates for arboretum expert services, as the City reserves the right to order this work at a later date, up to two (2) years after 
award of any subsequent contract, at the contract rates with the contract sum and time being adjusted accordingly and determined by 
mutual agreement, as well as signed by both parties authorized agents. 

Deletion 2: 

Section II.E.a.vi – New Entrance Road of the RFP has been deleted in its entirety, where the City reserves the right to order this work at 
a later date, up to two (2) years after award of any subsequent contract, at the contract rates with the contract sum and time being 
adjusted accordingly and determined by mutual agreement, as well as signed by both parties authorized agents. 

Revision 1: 

The arboretum experience in Section I.D - Minimum Requirements of the RFP has been revised to read as follows, where all other 
requirements of Section I.D remain the same: 

“Arboretum experience five (5) years and/or five (5) projects designing Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 qualified arboretum.” 

Additionally, we received the following questions/comments concerning this Request for Proposal.  Responses to these 
questions are also provided, where additions, revisions, clarifications, corrections and/or deletions found within the City’s 
response are incorporated into this Addendum: 

1) I am submitting the following observations and questions for your consideration. We would appreciate a prompt response, as
our team’s ability to respond to this RFP hinges on the response to these questions. Thanks in advance.

Section I.D Page 11: Minimum Requirements

Our understanding of the RFP is that the City is seeking to implement the Reimagining Red Gate Master Plan to be designed
as a minimum Level 1 arboretum, with potential to move towards a Level 2 or Level 3 arboretum in the future. The minimum
requirements noted in the RFP – having “Arboretum experience five (5) years and/or five (5) projects) designing level 3 qualified
arboretum” – seem to be very limiting as there are few firms or individuals that have had the opportunity to work on that many
level 3 qualified arboretum. Arboretums of this status take years to establish and are often led by the institution that manages
the collection and these collections are often built organically over time, they are not typically managed or designed by a single
individual or design firm.  Many firms will be able to claim that they have worked on arboretum projects that contribute to the
accreditation, however very few will be able to stake claim to designing five-(5) Level 3 ArbNet arboretums.

a. Can you please clarify how this criterion will be evaluated and how the “and/or” applies?

b. Is it acceptable to include work where we have designed to a minimum of Level 1 or 2 arboretum with aspirational plans for
the institution to seek accreditation and eventually become a Level 2 or 3, following the qualifications and requirements of ArbNet
Arboretum Accreditation Program?)

c. Is it acceptable to meet this criterion as a team?

RESPONSE 

See Revision 1 above. The experience can be demonstrated as a team. The “and/or” means the experience can either 
be five projects or five years of arboretum design experience, or some combination of the two.  

2) I am submitting the following observations and questions for your consideration. We would appreciate a prompt response, as
our team’s ability to respond to this RFP hinges on the response to these questions. Thanks in advance.

Section I.D Page 11: Minimum Requirements

How is the City defining “proof of the minimum qualification by furnishing copies of letters, certificates, etc. (as applicable) which
clearly document said qualifications”? Can you please be more specific as to what types of letters or certificates would meet this
criterion (e.g., will any of the following suffice to demonstrate these minimum qualifications? client references letters, design
awards/certificates, professional licenses, ArbNet Arboretum Accreditation documentation, project descriptions indicating how
the design met (achieved) Level 1, 2, or 3 criteria)?
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RESPONSE 

The listed examples are acceptable. 

3) Would the City consider working/purchasing on its own to implement, once up and running, a software program for plant
database management/inventory?

RESPONSE

See Deletion 1 above.

4) Please elaborate specifically on what the consultant is being asked to do with respect to online educational opportunities as part
of this agreement?

RESPONSE

See Deletion 1 above.

5) Please expand on signage programs are required as part of this effort?

1. Confirm that a signage master plan for the entire site is desired.  Locating where, what types of and how many signs go
where?

2. We assume that signage panel graphic design is required?
3. Interpretive/educational signs?  If so how many?  Etc.
4. Will the City provide content or is the consultant expected to write the interpretive content for the signs.

RESPONSE 

See Deletion 1 above. 

6) For purposes of bidding and comparing apples to apples, can you please be more specific about the exact number of bid
packages that you like and, for now, how you envision those being broken out -  either by area (circle areas on master plan) or
by dollar amount for construction budget.  Otherwise, this will be very difficult to price.

RESPONSE

For proposal purposes, assume three bid packages will be needed, based on estimated construction budgets.

7) Section II, B. Key Design Elements, a) ii (Page 14) Reference to “New Forest” to be completed in spring 2024. Was this planting
completed?

RESPONSE

Refer to Attachment A for this response. There have been two rounds of tree plantings completed with funding provided 
by the Chesapeake Bay Trust. The general locations of these two areas are shown on the attached NRI/FSD. The rough
limits of one reforestation area are shown on pages 2-3, and the rough limits of the second area are shown on pages
8-9.

8) On Section II, A. Project Scope, Part 1, Task A: Arboretum Design Development (page 12): ArbNet requirements for Level 1, 2,
3 accreditation lists physical requirements, such as number of species included in the collection, but also includes operational
requirements, such as dedicated collections curator, educational programming, contributions to the larger knowledge base, etc.
Is an operations and management plan or strategic plan for the organization to be included as part of this plan?

RESPONSE

See Deletion 1 above.

9) On Section II, A. Project Scope, Part 1, Task C (page 13): RFP mentions the design team should anticipate participation in up
to 4 public meetings. Would the outreach and planning for these public meetings be conducted by the City or the design team?

RESPONSE

The City will handle outreach for public meetings. The design team will be responsible for planning, preparing, and
leading the meetings.

10) On Section II, C. Arboretum Design, item d (page 15): There is detail included about signage, both interpretive and wayfinding.
Is it expected that a signage or interpretation consultant is included as part of the team?
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RESPONSE 

See Deletion 1 above. 

11) On Section II, E. Task C, items l and m (pages 18- 19): The RFP outlines a design schedule with multiple prescribed deliverables
and timing. Is there flexibility in this approach, in terms of number of deliverables and phase durations?

RESPONSE

There is some flexibility in the design schedule and durations, and your approach should be outlined in the ‘Project
Approach’ portion of the proposal. However, the design phase deliverables listed in item l (conceptual, 30%, 65%, 80%,
and 95%) are required because each phase has a specific purpose. Refer to item l on Page 19 of the RFP for
expectations associated with each deliverable.

12) The RFP says possible traffic light/signal.  Do we assume that we should include a fee for that or provide an nate price of the
traffic study warrants one?

RESPONSE

See Deletion 2 above.

13) Will a survey be required of the entire golf course or only select or limited areas?

RESPONSE

It is anticipated that surveying will be required in select or limited areas.

14) Will any additional wetland delineation be required beyond what will be covered with the NRI?

RESPONSE

Additional wetland delineation is not anticipated. See Attachment A for current wetlands delineation.

15) Can we assume that only one bid package will be developed and then once the City determined the funding available provide a
price at a later date for separate a phased set of plans based on that?  If will be difficult to assess pricing for multiple bid packages
without scope or area known.

RESPONSE

See response for Question #6 above.

16) Will there be amphitheater seating and band shell/stage as part of this project? Or only the concrete stage platform? Will electric
be needed in this area as a stub?

RESPONSE

This project includes establishing the amphitheater’s final location and providing a concrete platform with power. It
does not include design of an amphitheater. The City has not made a determination regarding the type of amphitheater,
but, for bid purposes, assume the slab is intended to be a “make-ready” component capable of receiving a structure in
the future.

17) Is the expectation that all of the walking trails throughout the park are technically ADA accessible?  Or only portions of trails to
key areas?

RESPONSE

No, all walking paths at RedGate will not be ADA accessible. For proposal purposes, assume pathways to unique
features inside the active area will need to be accessible.

18) Which areas of the site are to have lighting?

RESPONSE

Some site lighting may be required in the active area of the park, but final design will need to keep with the general
passive nature of the park.
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19) Are any areas to be irrigated?

RESPONSE

No.

20) Has a design budget been established for this project?

RESPONSE

No, a design budget has not been established for this project.

21) Will the provided Natural Resources Inventory/Forest Stand Delineation include identification of trees 6” and greater with an ID
number and health assessment? If so, will the information be provided in electronic format for use in the GIS database?

RESPONSE

Please see Attachment A. The information will be provided in electronic format after permit approval.

22) Will topography, streams, spring, ponds, wetlands, and other features be included in the provided Natural Resources
Inventory/Forest Stand Delineation?

RESPONSE

Please see Attachment A.

23) If information on trees 6” and greater is not provided, should we include a survey for trees 6” and greater throughout the 130
acres of the park?

RESPONSE

No. All trees 6-inches and greater were surveyed as part of the NRI/FSD based on the delineations shown on Attachment
B. We do not anticipate additional surveying of trees 6-inches and greater.

24) Should fieldwork to identify invasive species throughout the entire 130 acre park be included?

RESPONSE

See Deletion 1 above.

25) Is the invasives species management plan for the entire park, or the 10% active use area?

RESPONSE

See Deletion 1 above.

26) Please clarify what additional reconnaissance will be needed to supplement the NRI/FSD for preparation of the FCP.

RESPONSE

A preliminary copy of the NRI/FSD is provided as Attachment A. The Checklist for the FCP is being provided as
Attachment C. Additional reconnaissance may be required to supplement information needed for the FCP that is not
shown on the final NRI/FSD.

27) Is a survey available for the site and does it include the project entrance/intersection and traffic lights? Please provide a copy
for review, if available.

RESPONSE

See Deletion 2 above.

28) Can the City provide a draft of the Forest Conservation Plan in progress?

RESPONSE

An NRI/FSD is in progress. Please see Attachment A. Preparation of the Forest Conservation Plan is part of this RFP
scope and will be the responsibility of the selected design firm to complete. The checklist for the FCP is included as
Attachment C.
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29) Should the consultant team include demolition plans (RFP page 5) for the existing clubhouse, or any other scope associated
with this?

RESPONSE

A demolition plan for the clubhouse has been included as an ADD ALTERNATE in the Bid Schedule.

30) If the clubhouse is being demolished, should we include designing/building restrooms as part of the project? Does the City
envision a prefabricated restroom in the interim until the new visitor center gets built?

RESPONSE

Yes, we envision a prefabricated restroom near the picnic pavilions as part of this scope.

31) Will Task A need to consider native locations for the Visitor Center or utilize the current clubhouse location only?

RESPONSE

See Addition 5 above. The consultant will need to provide up to 3 conceptual sketches showing different layouts for
the new features. Although design of the Visitor Center is not part of this scope, it’s location will need to be determined
during the conceptual phase.

32) Should we plan to address all master plan recommendations noted on Page 12 Pathway Network?

RESPONSE

No. For proposal purposes, assume the master plan recommendations for the pathways will only be addressed inside
the active area only.

33) Please confirm the extent of the traffic study needed for the park entrance - traffic signal, turn lanes, additional lanes?

RESPONSE

See Deletion 2 above.
34) Should we design all arboretum features and park-wide enhancements (per Master Plan, p. 22) under Task A and the 30%

Design Submittal, or focus only on the 10% active central zone? We are trying to establish a scope of work boundary for the
“active” areas and the “arboretum” for the fee proposal.

RESPONSE

Design Development should focus on the active central zone.

35) How many options would the City like to see during Task A and B?

RESPONSE

Task A is being removed. See Deletion 1 above. For Task B, see Clarification 2 above.

36) We understand the Natural Resource Inventory/Forest Stand Delineation plan is in progress and the information from this
NRI/FSD will be provided. Is topography, geology, streams, ponds, and other observed features of significance all included in
the current effort, or will that be additional content that gets added to the new Update?

RESPONSE

Please see Attachment A. Additional content may be added to the preliminary NRI/FSD based on permit review
comments.

37) What is the anticipated project delivery method? General Contractor, Construction Manager (CM), Construction Manager at Risk
(CMR), other? If CM or CMR, do you anticipate the consultant will assist the City in preparing a RFQ or RFP as well as assisting
in the selection process?

RESPONSE

This will be a Firm-Fixed Bid (Lump Sum) issued to a General Contractor.
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38) Please provide additional information regarding utility design and implementation details that are expected for Phase 1. For a
utility make-ready package, we anticipate needing to prepare a schematic level design for the Visitor’s Center and amphitheater
so that an accurate M/E/P basis of design can be developed and utilities sized accordingly. Or will the City provide basic criteria
including square footage, programming, unique features, etc. to base the utility design on?

RESPONSE

The City will provide basic criteria to base the utility design on.

39) What kind of amphitheater is the City envisioning - a passive one for outdoor gatherings with the ability to support equipment
rentals or a built-in with lighting, sound systems, party panels, etc. fully integrated? The master plan includes images for a range
of those.

RESPONSE

See response to Question #16 above.

40) Please clarify if the intent for slab-on-grade for the future amphitheater is to create an informal gathering / assembly space during
Phase 1, or if the slab is intended as a make-ready component to directly receive the future amphitheater superstructure.

RESPONSE

See response to Question #16 above.

41) Please confirm if we should include a fee for splitting the construction documents into three separate construction bid packages
or if the design team will be able to submit an additional fee when a decision for that is made.

RESPONSE

See response for Question #6 above.

42) Is there an anticipated quantity of borings needed for building and pavement design, or should the consultant make an
assumption with additional borings provided as additional services?

RESPONSE

Quantity and depth of borings should be determined by the design team.

43) Regarding the submittal for "permit ready drawings and specifications - 210 calendar days (7 months) after the City makes a
selection on which option to proceed," what option is this submittal referring to? Please elaborate on the need for the additional
7-months to produce permit ready drawings and confirm the project timeframe of one (1) year of design and (2) years for
construction for Phase 1.

RESPONSE 

The ‘option’ being referenced is the approved conceptual layout. See Clarification 3 above for more detail regarding 
the Conceptual Phase. The 7-months is related to the amount of time between a concept layout being chosen, and the 
design being permit-ready. However, there is flexibility in the scheduling. See Question 11 above for more information. 

44) Is the City also looking for a business and operations strategic plan for the arboretum as part of the proposal?

RESPONSE

See Deletion 1 above.
45) Since an arborist report is in progress, what is the extent of the Arborist Report required as part of this proposal? We are looking

for some guidelines to base our fee on.

RESPONSE

See Deletion 1 above.

46) The minimum requirements state that firms must have “Arboretum experience five (5) years and/or five (5) projects) designing
level 3 qualified arboretum.”  Can this be demonstrated as a team, or must the prime firm have this experience?

RESPONSE

See response for Question #1 above.
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47) Does the requested arboretum experience need to be in projects creating arboretums or projects that were arboretums at
inception of the project?

RESPONSE

The requested arboretum experience can be anything that shows experience working on or creating arboretums.

48) What documentation would the City like to see for demonstration of experience with Olmsted’s Design Principles?

RESPONSE

Any of, but not limited to, the following will be sufficient: client references or letters, design awards/certificates,
professional licenses, project descriptions indicating how the design demonstrated the principles, etc.

49) Are firms with prior experience on the site excluded from this project?

RESPONSE

See Addition 4 of this Addendum.

50) May the City provide additional detail regarding anticipated or desired phasing (with the understanding that the phasing may
change based on funding availability) to help establish more consistency in pricing?

RESPONSE

See response for Question #6 above.

51) Since the project may be installed in phases, are teams being requested to provide fees for construction of the park in its entirety?

RESPONSE

No. For proposal purposes, assume construction will occur within the active area as designated on Attachment B.

Please sign below to acknowledge receipt of addendum and return with your proposal. 

Sincerely, 

Jonathan Pierson, CPSM, C.P.M. 
Assistant Director 

Company Name Authorized Signature 

Date 

JWP/jwp 
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THROUGHOUT THE SITE. THERE HAS BEEN LITTLE TO NO FOREST MANAGEMENT IN THE PAST OR CURRENTLY. AMT RECOMMENDS
THAT AFTER SITE IMPROVEMENTS ARE COMPLETED, INVASIVES BE REMOVED AND MANAGED ACCORDING TO CITY OF ROCKVILLE
STANDARDS.

STAND 1:
FOREST STAND 1 IS LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST SIDE OF THE SITE. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY ACER RUBRUM. IT IS RIVER
BIRCH - SYCAMORE ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE HERBACEOUS AND WOODY
PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES CIRSIUM VULGARE, CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, VITIS SSP, AND AMPELOPSIS
BREVIPEDUNCULATA. INVASIVES ARE SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE FOREST STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE LONICERA
MAACKII, CIRSIUM VULGARE, MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM, CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, AND AMPELOPSIS BREVIPEDUNCULATA.

STAND 2:
FOREST STAND 2 IS LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST SIDE OF THE SITE, NORTH OF STAND 1. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY
LIRIODENDRON TULIPIFERA, ACER RUBRUM, AND QUERCUS RUBRA. IT IS TULIP POPLAR ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED
UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE HERBACEOUS AND WOODY PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES LONICERA
JAPONICA, LONICERA MAACKII, TOXICODENDRON RADICANS, AMPELOPSIS BREVIPEDUNCULATA, MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM, AND
SOLANUM CAROLINENSE. INVASIVES ARE SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE FOREST STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE
MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM, AMPELOPSIS BREVIPEDUNCULATA, LONICERA MAACKII, LONICERA JAPONICA, SOLANUM CAROLINENSE,
AND RUBUS PHOENICOLASIUS.

STAND 3:
FOREST STAND 3 IS LOCATED ON TOWARDS THE NORTH SIDE OF THE SITE. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY QUERCUS ALBA. IT IS
CHESTNUT OAK ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE HERBACEOUS AND WOODY
PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES TOXICODENDRON RADICANS, QUERCUS MONTANA (FORMERLY QUERCUS PRINUS),
PARTHENOCISSUS QUINQUEFOLIA, TRIFOLIUM REPENS, VITIS SP., CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM, SMILAX
ROTUNDIFOLIA, LIGUSTRUM JAPONICUM, AND LESPEDEZA SP. INVASIVES ARE SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE FOREST STAND AND
SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, AMPELOPSIS BREVIPEDUNCULATA, SMILAX ROTUNDIFOLIA, MICROSTEGIUM
VIMINEUM, AND LESPEDEZA SP.

STAND 4:
FOREST STAND 4 IS LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SITE. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY LIRIODENDRON
TULIPIFERA. IT IS TULIP POPLAR ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE HERBACEOUS
AND WOODY PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES DRYOPTERIS MARGINALIS, MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM, TRILLIUM GRANDIFLORUM,
CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, CARYA TOMENTOSA, AND IMPATIENS CAPENSIS. INVASIVES ARE SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE FOREST
STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS AND MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM.

STAND 5:
FOREST STAND 5 IS LOCATED ON THE NORTHERN EDGE OF THE SITE, TO THE EAST OF STAND 4. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY
NYSSA SYLVATICA AND QUERCUS MONTANA (FORMERLY QUERCUS PRINUS). IT IS CHESTNUT OAK ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED
UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE HERBACEOUS AND WOODY PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES QUERCUS
MONTANA (FORMERLY QUERCUS PRINUS), PRUNUS SEROTINA, LIRIODENDRON TULIPIFERA, MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM, ACER
RUBRUM, PARTHENOCISSUS QUINQUEFOLIA, CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, CARYA TOMENTOSA, AND LONICERA MAACKII. INVASIVES
ARE SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE FOREST STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM, CELASTRUS
ORBICULATUS, AND LONICERA MAACKII.

STAND 6:
FOREST STAND 6 IS LOCATED ON THE EASTERN EDGE OF THE SITE. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY NYSSA SYLVATICA. IT IS
CHESTNUT OAK ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE HERBACEOUS AND WOODY
PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES PRUNUS SEROTINA, RUBUS PHOENICOLASIUS, AMPELOPSIS BREVIPEDUNCULATA,
PARTHENOCISSUS QUINQUEFOLIA, POLYSTICHUM ACROSTICHOIDES, SMILAX ROTUNDIFOLIA, MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM, AND
CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS. INVASIVES ARE SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE FOREST STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE SMILAX
ROTUNDIFOLIA, MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM, BERBERIS THUNBERGII, RUBUS PHOENICOLASIUS, AND CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS.

STAND 7:
FOREST STAND 7 IS LOCATED ON THE SOUTHEAST SIDE OF THE SITE. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY QUERCUS ALBA AND QUERCUS
RUBRA. IT IS TULIP POPLAR ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE HERBACEOUS AND
WOODY PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, ACER RUBRUM, PRUNUS SEROTINA, VITIS SP., BERBERIS
THUNBERGII, PARTHENOCISSUS QUINQUEFOLIA, MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM, AND TOXICODENDRON RADICANS. INVASIVES ARE
SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE FOREST STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE RUBUS PHOENICOLASIUS, CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS,
BERBERIS THUNBERGII, AND MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM.

STAND 8:
FOREST STAND 8 IS LOCATED ON THE SOUTHERN SIDE OF THE SITE, SOUTH OF STAND 9. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY NYSSA
SYLVATICA AND QUERCUS ALBA. IT IS CHESTNUT OAK ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND
SHRUBS. THE HERBACEOUS AND WOODY PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES PRUNUS SEROTINA, PARTHENOCISSUS
QUINQUEFOLIA, VITIS SP., LONICERA MAACKII, CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, PHYTOLACCA AMERICANA, AND RUBUS
PHOENICOLASIUS. INVASIVES ARE SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE FOREST STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE LONICERA
MAACKII, CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, AND RUBUS PHOENICOLASIUS.

STAND 9:
FOREST STAND 9 IS LOCATED ON THE SOUTHERN SIDE OF THE SITE, NORTH OF STAND 8. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY QUERCUS
MONTANA (FORMERLY QUERCUS PRINUS) AND NYSSA SYLVATICA. IT IS CHESTNUT OAK ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED
UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE HERBACEOUS AND WOODY PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES
PARTHENOCISSUS QUINQUEFOLIA, QUERCUS MONTANA (FORMERLY QUERCUS PRINUS), RUBUS PHOENICOLASIUS,
TOXICODENDRON RADICANS, ACER RUBRUM, SMILAX ROTUNDIFOLIA, AND MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM. INVASIVES ARE SPREAD
THROUGHOUT THE FOREST STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, RUBUS PHOENICOLASIUS, SMILAX
ROTUNDIFOLIA, MICROSTEGIUM VIMINEUM.

STAND 10:
FOREST STAND 10 IS LOCATED ON THE SOUTHERN SIDE OF THE SITE, WEST OF STAND 11. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY
LIRIODENDRON TULIPIFERA. IT IS TULIP POPLAR ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE
HERBACEOUS AND WOODY PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES WISTERIA SP., TOXICODENDRON RADICANS, AMPELOPSIS
BREVIPEDUNCULATA, PARTHENOCISSUS QUINQUEFOLIA, QUERCUS PHELLOS, AND RHUS TYPHINA . INVASIVES ARE SPREAD
THROUGHOUT THE FOREST STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE SMILAX ROTUNDIFOLIA, AMPELOPSIS BREVIPEDUNCULATA,
ALBIZIA JULIBRISSIN, WISTERIA SP., AND CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS.

STAND 11:
FOREST STAND 11 IS LOCATED ON THE SOUTHERN SIDE OF THE SITE, EAST OF STAND 10. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY FAGUS
GRANDIFOLIA. IT IS CHESTNUT OAK ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE
HERBACEOUS AND WOODY PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, PARTHENOCISSUS QUINQUEFOLIA,
TOXICODENDRON RADICANS, AND RUBUS PHOENICOLASIUS. INVASIVES ARE SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE FOREST STAND AND
SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE BERBERIS THUNBERGII, RUBUS PHOENICOLASIUS, AND CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS.

STAND 12:
FOREST STAND 12 IS LOCATED ALONG THE SOUTHERN EDGE OF THE SITE. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY NYSSA SYLVATICA AND
QUERCUS RUBRA. IT IS CHESTNUT OAK ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE
HERBACEOUS AND WOODY PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, LONICERA MAACKII, PARTHENOCISSUS
QUINQUEFOLIA, TOXICODENDRON RADICANS, SMILAX ROTUNDIFOLIA, AND ILEX OPACA. INVASIVES ARE SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE
FOREST STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, LONICERA MAACKII, AND SMILAX ROTUNDIFOLIA.

STAND 13:
FOREST STAND 13 IS LOCATED ON THE WESTERN EDGE OF THE SITE. THIS STAND IS DOMINATED BY PRUNUS SEROTINA. IT IS RIVER
BIRCH - SYCAMORE ASSOCIATION AND HAS A MIXED UNDERSTORY OF SMALL TREES AND SHRUBS. THE HERBACEOUS AND WOODY
PLANT COVER 0'-3' TALL INCLUDES EUONYMUS FORTUNEI, CELASTRUS ORBICULATUS, PHYTOLACCA AMERICANA, TOXICODENDRON
RADICANS, SMILAX ROTUNDIFOLIAR, AND AMPELOPSIS BREVIPEDUNCULATA. INVASIVES ARE SPREAD THROUGHOUT THE FOREST
STAND AND SPECIES PRESENT INCLUDE LONICERA MAACKII, RUBUS PHOENICOLASIUS, EUONYMUS FORTUNEI, CELASTRUS
ORBICULATUS, SMILAX ROTUNDIFOLIA, AND AMPELOPSIS BREVIPEDUNCULATA.

FOREST STAND NARRATIVE

SB SB STREAM BUFFER

WB WETLAND BUFFER
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INVENTORY/EXISTING CONDITIONS/FOREST STAND

DELINEATION PLAN PURPOSES ONLY

I CERTIFY THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT UNDER THE
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FOREST CONSERVATION LAW REQUIREMENTS.
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THIS PLAN IS FOR NATURAL RESOURCE
INVENTORY/EXISTING CONDITIONS/FOREST STAND

DELINEATION PLAN PURPOSES ONLY

I CERTIFY THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT UNDER THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF MARYLAND, AND THAT THESE DOCUMENTS WERE
PREPARED UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
FOREST CONSERVATION LAW REQUIREMENTS.
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CERTIFICATION

SOILS TABLE
MAP UNIT
SYMBOL MAP UNIT NAME

K-FACTOR
(WHOLE SOIL) DRAINAGE CLASS

HIGH
ERODIBILITY

(Y/N)

HYDRIC
INCLUSION %

HYDROLOGIC
SOIL GROUP

1B GAILA SILT LOAM, 3-8% SLOPES 0.43 WELL DRAINED NO 5 B
1C GAILA SILT LOAM, 8-15% SLOPES 0.43 WELL DRAINED NO 5 B
2B GLENELG SILT LOAM, 3-8% SLOPES 0.37 WELL DRAINED NO 0 B

2UB GLENELG-URBAN LAND COMPLEX, 0-8% SLOPES 0.28 WELL DRAINED NO 0 B
2UC GLENELG-URBAN LAND COMPLEX, 8-15% SLOPES 0.28 WELL DRAINED NO 0 B
6A BAILE SILT LOAM, 0-3% SLOPES 0.37 POORLY DRAINED NO 85 C/D
65B WHEATON SILT LOAM, 0-8% SLOPES 0.43 WELL DRAINED NO 0 B

116D BLOCKTOWN CHANNERY SILT LOAM, 15-25% SLOPES 0.28 WELL DRAINED NO 5 D
116E BLOCKTOWN CHANNERY SILT LOAM, 25-45% SLOPES 0.28 WELL DRAINED YES 5 D

W CENSUS WATER N/A N/A NO 0 N/A

SHEET

MARK DESCRIPTION

SHEET TITLE

AMT FILE NO. 

DATE: 

SCALE:

DESIGNED BY: 

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DATE

REVISIONS

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
    ORTON      HOMAS   AND      SSOCIATES,     NC.MA. T A I

700 KING FARM BOULEVARD SUITE 300
(301) 881-2545 FAX:(301) 881-0814

EMAIL: AMT1@AMTENGINEERING.COM

OWNER

SHEET OF

CONSULTANTS

REDGATE PARK
14500 AVERY ROAD

ROCKVILLE, MD 20853

PROJECT TITLE

REGISTRATION STAMP

17-1015.002

8/7/2024

EMB

EMB

AES

AS NOTED

CITY OF ROCKVILLE
DEPARTMENT OF RECREATION

AND PARKS
111 MARYLAND AVENUE

ROCKVILLE, MD 20850

"I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THESE DOCUMENTS WERE PREPARED
OR APPROVED BY ME, AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
MARYLAND, LICENSE NO. 3005, EXPIRATION DATE 12/1/2026."

*BOLD DENOTES SPECIMEN TREES

Preliminary
07/14/2025  11:27:23 AM

ATTACHMENT A
RFP 08-25 

ADDENDUM 1

Page 21 of 26



E GUDE DR

TAFT CT

TAFT ST

R
O

TH
G

EB
 D

R

AVERY RD

NORBECK RD

Rock Creek 
Regional Park

Blair G. Ewing 
School and Mark 

Twain Park

Croydon Creek Nature 
Center/John G. Hayes 

Forest Preserve

0 50 100 300

1” = 300’

Reimagining RedGate Park September 1, 2022

Illustrative Plan

2

3

4

5

6

6

7

7

10

10

10

11

13

12

14

10

7

7
8

9

PARK FEATURES
1 New Visitor Center Area
2 Community Gardens
3 Amphitheater
4 Deck Overlook and 

Gathering Area
5 Playground
6 Picnic Lawn
7 Passive Area/Lawn
8 Existing Pathway
9 Connecting Pathways
10 Existing Steep Pathways
11 Re-aligned Entrance Road
12 Pedestrian Entry Gate
13 Gate
14 Dog Exercise Area
15 Existing Parking Lot

Existing Pathways 
(Exceeding 5% Slope)

Paved Pathway, 
Existing

Paved Pathway, 
Improved/Added

Existing Pathway, 
To Be Removed

1

15

6 Taft Court

Amphitheater

Deck/
Boardwalk 
Overlook

Community Gardens

Re-Aligned Main 
Entrance

New Visitor Center 
(Demolish Clubhouse)

Area where new visitor 
center could be located

Dog Exercise Area 

Playground

Passive 
Lawn (Typ.)

0	 50	 100	 200

Illustrative Plan

Blue Areas - All trees 6"+
surveyed in this area

Red Areas - All trees 24"+
surveyed in this area

Green Bubble - Approximate
limits of Active Area

ATTACHMENT B
RFP 08-25 

ADDENDUM 1

Page 22 of 26



Checklist for Forest Conservation Plan
City of Rockville
Department of Community Planning and Development 
Services/Forestry Division
111 Maryland Avenue, Rockville, Maryland 20850
Phone: 240-314-8700 • Fax: 240-314-8719 • Website: www.rockvillemd.gov

Type of FCP (check one):

SFD        Forestry-SWM Overlay        Pre FCP        Final FCP        Amended FCP

Please Print Clearly or Type
Project Name:  ______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Legal Description of Property: ___________________________________________________________________________

Tax Acct. ID(s): ______________________________________________________________________________________

Size of Property: _____________________________________________________________________________________

Name of Firm Preparing Plan: ___________________________________________________________________________

Contact Name: _____________________________________________ Phone: ___________________________________

Email: _________________________________________Limits of Disturbance: ___________________________________

Type of Plan Submission to CPDS (check one):  STP     SPX     PJT     SFD 

CPDS Case No.: ______________________________________________________________________________________

Instructions for Completing the Checklist
The checklist has been developed to provide guidance on the submission requirements for preparing Forest Conservation Plans 

(FCP). Refer to Chapter 10.5, Forest and Tree Preservation Ordinance, and the Forest Conservation Manual, as may be amended, 

for codes and regulations governing forest conservation in the city. All items on the checklist must be addressed as either 

applicable (A) or not applicable (N/A). If checking N/A, a brief explanation as to why shall be provided. Any item left blank will 

result in the application being deemed incomplete. The plan preparer must sign the last page of the checklist.

Forest Conservation Plan Acceptance and Review Policy
The checklist must be accompanied by the Forest Conservation Plan application and review fee except for Forestry-SWM 

Overlay plans for which an FCP application and review fee is not required. Both the checklist and application must be 

completed and correctly filled out. Incomplete or incorrect applications or checklists will be returned to the applicant. All items 

listed in Sections A and B must be provided with all forest conservation plan submittals. Complete the appropriate section(s) 

C, D, E, F or G based on the type of submittal. The forest conservation plan review period is 45 days from when the application 

package is accepted for review by Forestry. Each re-submission generates another 45-day review period. Re-submittal fees 

may apply.

4/11

The checklist has been developed to provide guidance on the submission requirements for preparing NRI/FSD plans. 
Refer to Chapter 10.5, Forest and Tree Preservation Ordinance, and the Forest Conservation Manual, as may be
amended, for codes and regulations governing forest conservation in the city. All items on the checklist must be
addressed as either applicable (A) or not applicable (N/A).  If checking N/A, a brief explanation as to why shall be
provided. Any item left blank will result in the application being deemed incomplete.  The qualified plan preparer must
sign the last page of the checklist.

This checklist and associated submission documents must be submitted through My Government Online. Instructions on
how to create an account and submit online can be found here. Incomplete applications and/or checklists submitted through
the online portal will be returned to the applicant. All items listed in Sections A and B must be provided with all forest
conservation plan submittals.  Complete the appropriate section(s) C, D, E, F or G based on the type of submittal. The
forest conservation plan review period is 45 days from when the application package is accepted for review by Forestry.
Each re-submission generates another 45-day review period. Re-submittal fees may apply.

11/24
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FCP Checklist Page 2
4/11

A) Application Section

1. ___________ Submission package including all required plans
2. ___________ Applicable review fee

3. ___________ Submission package including all required plans

B) Submission Requirements

4. ___________ The approved NRI/FSD (SFD’s may submit concurrently)

5. ___________ Pre, Final or Amended FCP

6. ___________ 2 copies of the Landscape Plan

7. ___________ For Pre, Final and Amended FCP’s, include the Forestry-SWM Overlay Plan

8. ___________ For Final and Amended FCP’s, include the Erosion and Sediment Control Plan

9.

C) Forestry-SWM Overlay Plan

10. ___________ All items required in Section D of the Department of Public Works checklist for Stormwater

Management Concept

2. ___________ Locations of any existing Forest Conservation Easements on or adjacent to the property

3. ___________ Preliminary delineation of existing trees to be used for forest conservation credit

4. ___________ If the site has a previously approved FCP, show location, type and size of all trees counting toward forest
conservation or significant tree replacement including a symbol for any missing trees

D) Preliminary FCP

1. ___________ Applicable items from the approved NRI, i.e. significant tree table

2. ___________ Completed forest conservation worksheet

3. ___________ Minimum tree cover table

4. ___________ Plan showing proposed limits of disturbance, all significant trees, CRZ’s and disposition

5. ___________ Significant tree table with area of CRZ’s, disposition and number of replacement trees required

6. ___________ Existing forest and proposed clearing

7. ___________ Forest stand narrative

8. ___________ Proposed Forest Conservation Easement area(s)

9. ___________ Written justification for disturbing priority forest and/or clearing below the break-even point

10. ___________ Written justification for removing specimen trees

11. ___________ Written justification for requesting fee in lieu

12. ___________ Proposed landscape plan showing trees counting for MTC, FC, and significant tree replacement by type:
shade, evergreen, or ornamental

13. ___________ Location of proposed tree protection fence, root pruning and/or limb pruning

14. ___________ All existing utilities, easements, rights of way

15. ___________ All proposed SWM facilities/devices, utilities, dedication areas, and easements

16. ___________ Any other information the City Forester deems necessary

                      Management Concept

1.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

1.

2.

3.

4.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

11/24
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FCP Checklist Page 3
4/11

E) Final FCP

1. ___________ All applicable items from the approved NRI

2. ___________ Completed City of Rockville forest conservation worksheet

3. ___________ Minimum tree cover table

4. ___________ Significant tree table from approved NRI with proposed disposition of all trees (save or remove), area of
CRZ, number of replacement trees required for each removal, proposed protection and mitigation measures 
shown on plan and submitted separately on 8 ½” by 11” sheets

5. ___________ Limits of disturbance

6. ___________ Existing and proposed contour lines including spot elevations where applicable, i.e. walls, highpoints

7. ___________ Existing structures including buildings, sidewalks, utilities, fences, driveways, etc. to be removed and
method of removal

8. ___________ All proposed construction including buildings, roads, sidewalks, stormwater management facilities, walls,
paths, signs, benches, lighting, etc.

9. ___________ Stockpile areas for soil, material, equipment and staging

10. ___________ Concrete washout area

11. ___________ Location of temporary trailers including construction and sales

12. ___________ All existing and proposed utility locations, easements and rights of way

13. ___________ Proposed dedication including road and land areas

14. ___________ Location and type of sediment control measures

15. ___________ Current Erosion and Sediment Control plan

16. ___________ Sequence of construction (must match Sediment Control Sequence)

17. ___________ Forest retention areas including size of area(s) and priority designation of area(s)

18. ___________ Forest cleared areas including size of area(s) and priority designation of area(s)

19. ___________ Reforestation and afforestation areas

20. ___________ Location and type of tree protection measures

21. ___________ Location of permanent protection devices

22. ___________ Specifications/details for tree protection measures

23. ___________ Specifications/details for tree mitigation measures, i.e. root pruning

24. ___________ Non native and invasive plant statement and location of plants graphically shown on the plan

25. ___________ Planting plan showing reforestation, afforestation, and significant tree replacement including tree planting
list with type, size, quantity, and form for all trees

26. ___________ City of Rockville Tree Planting Details

27. ___________ City of Rockville Forest and Tree Preservation Ordinance Notes

28. ___________ Landscape plan

29. ___________ Written justification for disturbing priority forest and/or clearing below the break-even point

30. ___________ Written justification for removing specimen trees

31. ___________ Written justification for requesting fee in lieu

32. ___________ Any other information the City Forester deems necessary

33.

F) Amended FCP

1. ___________ The approved Final FCP with all proposed changes redlined and clouded showing all plan/site
revisions, additions/deletions and/or corrections

2. ___________ Any other information the City Forester deems necessary

1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.
20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.
.27.

28.

29.
30.

31.

32.

1.

2.
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FCP Checklist Page 3
4/11

G) Single Family Dwellings

1. ___________ All applicable items from the NRI/FSD except if submitting a combined plan

2. ___________ Significant tree table from approved NRI with proposed disposition of all trees (save or remove), number of
replacement trees required for each removal, proposed protection and mitigation measures shown on plan 

3. ___________ Limits of disturbance

4. ___________ Existing and proposed contour lines including spot elevations where applicable, i.e. walls, highpoints

5. ___________ Existing structures including buildings, sidewalks, utilities, fences, driveways, etc. to be removed and method
of  removal

6. ___________ All proposed construction including house, sidewalks, stormwater management facilities, walls, paths,
sheds, driveway

7. ___________ Stockpile areas for soil, material, equipment and staging

8. ___________ Concrete washout area

9. ___________ All existing and proposed utility locations, easements and rights of way

10. ___________ Proposed dedication including road and land areas

11. ___________ Proposed landscaping showing location of significant replacement trees

12. ___________ Plant list with tree types, sizes and form

13. ___________ Sequence of construction

14. ___________ Location and type of tree protection measures

15. ___________ Specifications/details for tree protection measures

16. ___________ Specifications/details for tree mitigation measures, i.e. root pruning

17. ___________ City of Rockville Tree Planting Details

18. ___________ City of Rockville Forest and Tree Preservation Ordinance Notes

19. ___________ Written justification for removing specimen trees

20. ___________ The Erosion and Sediment Control Plan

21. ___________ Any other information the City Forester deems necessary

Additional Requirements:
_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

Comments:
_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________  ____________________________________________________

Date Name of Firm Preparing Plan

__________________________________________   ____________________________________________________

Signature of Plan Preparer Type or Print Name

__________________________________________

Plan Preparer Qualification

Checklist updated April 2011

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

4
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